Date
Time

P
ES

KNS Y
County Council 33@3;%“

Highways Committee

/"DurhamEZ]

Tuesday 22 November 2011
10.00 am

Venue Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham

Business
Part A

Minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 2011 (Pages 1 - 4)
Declarations of interest, if any

Byway Applications in Weardale and Teesdale - Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 Definitive Map Modification Order Applications -
Joint Report of Corporate Director, Regeneration and Economic
Development and Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Pages 5 -
24)

Durham Gate - Speed restrictions and access restrictions - Report of
Corporate Director, Regeneration and Economic Development (Pages
25 - 38)

Such other business, as in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting,
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration

Colette Longbottom
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham
14 November 2011

To:

The Members of the Highways Committee

Councillor G Bleasdale (Chair)
Councillor J Robinson (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors B Arthur, A Bainbridge, D Burn, N Foster, D Hancock,
S Hugill, D Marshall, J Maslin, A Naylor, J Shiell, P Stradling,

T Taylor, L Thomson, R Todd, E Tomlinson, J Turnbull, C Woods,
A Wright and R Young

Contact: Michael Turnbull Tel: 0191 383 3861




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 1

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Highways Committee held in Council Chamber, County Hall, Durham on
Tuesday 1 November 2011 at 10.00 am

Present:

Councillor G Bleasdale in the Chair

Members of the Committee:

Councillors J Robinson (Vice-Chairman), B Arthur, A Bainbridge, D Burn, A Naylor,
J Shiell, T Taylor and R Todd

Apologies:

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors N Foster, D Hancock, S Hugill,
D Marshall, J Maslin, P Stradling, E Tomlinson, J Turnbull, C Woods, A Wright and

R Young

Also Present:
Councillor D J Southwell

1 Minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2011

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2011 were agreed as a correct record
and signed by the Chairman.

2 Declarations of interest, if any

There were no declarations of interest in relation to the item of business on the agenda.
3 Public Right of Way Crossing of A690, Gilesgate, Durham

The Committee considered a joint report of the Corporate Director, Regeneration and
Economic Development and Corporate Director, Neighbourhood Services following a
recent public consultation in relation to a public right of way crossing on the A690 at
Gilesgate, Durham (for copy see file of Minutes).

The consultation had been carried out following a fatal accident which had occurred earlier
in the year when a child was killed crossing the north-eastbound carriageway of the A690
at Kepier Lane, Gilesgate, Durham City.

The Committee were provided with the history and legal issues governing the public right

of way and were shown a number of maps illustrating the route and photographs of
bridleway 114 which showed the:

e route heading west towards A690;
e gate at highway boundary;

Page 1



path on, along and crossing the eastern verge of eastern carriageway;
stepped crossing of central reservation;

bridleway to Kepier Farm west of A690;

view west of the western carriageway and central reservation steps.

A site investigation carried out by the County Council and Durham Constabulary following
the accident had paid particular attention to vehicular speeds, visibility, pedestrian useage
and routes to and from Durham City centre. As a result of the investigation a number of
control measures had been identified.

The Committee were informed that the public consultation exercise sought the views of
interested parties in relation to use of the path, whether it should be closed, or how the
crossing could be made safer. Representation to the consultation had been good and
those representations received during the consultation period were summarised in
Appendix C to the report. Amongst the responses received were suggestions for making a
retained crossing safer including the construction of an underpass or bridge, improved
sighage and road markings, lighting the crossing area and a reduction in the speed limit
from the current 70 mph.

The Committee were informed that the costs associated with the construction of a
footbridge would be considerable with a potential for additional costs due to the unstable
nature of ground at the location. The types of works that could be undertaken included the
installation of hazard bollards and reflectors, additional warning signs, additional footway
construction and changes to road markings.

Mrs Walker, the mother of the child involved in the tragic accident made a statement to the
Committee which acknowledged the high useage level of the public right of way. She was
appreciative for the resultant investigation and consultation work undertaken by the County
Council since the accident. Mrs Walker acknowledged the difficulties with regard to the
current financial climate and fully appreciated that the installation of a subway or bridge
was not a viable option, however, she hoped that some control measures could be
introduced as soon as possible to make the crossing safer all round. Mrs Walker also
made reference to the possibility of improved lighting and asked that this matter be given
serious consideration.

The Business Manager informed the Committee that representation had also been made
by the Member of Parliament for Durham City, Dr Roberta Blackman-Woods. She
requested that improvements to the signage and related crossing works should be given
priority by the Council and carried out as quickly as possible, given the importance of the
issue.

Dr Blackman-Woods also commented that any new signage should be highly visible and
that improvements to the lighting should be progressed as a priority. She hoped that the
improvements to the crossing would prevent any future tragedies and thanked the Council
for the work undertaken to date.

Councillor Southwell, local councillor for the Gilesgate Electoral Division supported Mrs
Walkers comments and informed the Committee that both himself and Councillor
Thomson, the other local councillor, had previously expressed concern about traffic speed
on the section of the A690 in question. Councillor Southwell commented that that there

Page 2



could be an extremely strong case for the introduction of a 50 mph speed limit. In relation
to possible improved lighting, Councillor Southwell acknowledged that this area would
need further technical investigation and commented that both of the local councillors would
fund money for improved lighting from their respective member funds and supported the
recommendations detailed in the report.

The Business Manager informed the Committee that further investigation would need to
take place in relation to improvements to lighting. The possible reduction of the speed limit
would also require further investigation and consultation in due course.

Mr Gilroy, a local resident, informed the Committee that he had no objection to the
additional hazard signage but expressed concern that the view of those motorists travelling
alongside buses occupying the bus lane could potentially be obscured, and sought
clarification in relation to the positioning of the signage. In response, the Business
Manager indicated that any additional signage would be doubled and exist on the verge
side and central reserve, acknowledging that two signs side-by-side gave more
prominence.

Councillor Shiell supported the comments made by both Mrs Walker and Councillor
Southwell and remarked that the suggestions made in the report were both sensible and
practical, given that evidence suggested that closure of the public right of way would be
difficult to achieve, would not resolve anything in the short term and would only serve to
extend the process into a matter of years for which a favourable outcome would possibly
not be achieved. Councillor Shiell stated that the single most important step would be to
avoid any further accidents as soon as possible and duly supported the recommendations
detailed in the report.

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Committee requested that an update be provided
to the Highways Committee meeting scheduled for 21 February 2012 to provide
reassurance to Mrs Walker that the Highways Committee had taken the issue very
seriously and to monitor progress with the scheme.

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be approved and that officers undertake
the necessary investigations into the possible reduction of the speed limit. The Committee
also agreed that an update be brought to its meeting on 21 February 2012.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Item 3

Highways Committee %
Durham =%k

22 November 2011

County Council % lw
Hartop Lane and other Byway

Applications in Weardale and Teesdale

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
Definitive Map Modification Orders

Joint Report of lan Thompson, Corporate Director of Regeneration
& Economic Development and Colette Longbottom, Head of Legal
& Democratic Services

Purpose of the Report

1 To reconsider a decision to make a Definitive Map Modification Order to add a
byway known as Hartop Lane to the Definitive Map and Statement of Public
Rights of Way and to report on all the applications determined by the
Highways Committee on 3 March 2011.

Background

2 On 3 March 2011 the Highways Committee determined that 6 routes in
Weardale and Teesdale should be recorded as public byways. These are
shown in Appendix A.

3 The Highways Committee has the delegated responsibility for considering
applications to modify the Definitive Map and Statement.

4 Following the decision of the Highways Committee on 3 March 2011 the
landowners for 4 of the 6 routes sought an Opinion from a leading Counsel
and were advised to issue interim injunction proceedings to prevent the
Council making the Orders. Therefore it was agreed with the solicitors acting
on behalf of the landowners that the Council would not proceed to make the
Orders until it had sought its own further Advice from Counsel. This has now
been received and is attached at Appendix B.

5 In brief, the 2 main legal arguments raised by the landowners are:

a Rights for mechanically propelled vehicles would have been
extinguished for all the applications due to them being non-complaint
with the relevant regulations (this ‘the Winchester argument’ was
detailed in paragraphs 12-15 of the 3 March 2011 report and attached
as Appendix C).

b There are no subsisting applications left to determine for Routes 1, 2
and 3 as, following a Public Inquiry, the decision made by the Inspector

Page 5



on behalf of Secretary of State to confirm the Orders for for routes 1
and 2 was quashed by the High Court and Route 3 was not confirmed
by the Inspector (‘the functus officio argument’).

Although the landowners’ advice only referred to Routes 1 to 4, the
Winchester argument would also be relevant to Routes 5 and 6 (different
landowners).

Recommendations and reasons

6

The most recent Advice obtained by the Council, as found at Appendix B,
states that the Orders should be progressed as determined by the Committee
on 3 March 2011. However, excepting Hartop Lane (Route 3) where he
agreed with the landowners’ Counsel that due to the Inspector having
previously not confirmed the Order for this route that there is no longer an
outstanding application to determine, he did not agree with either the
Winchester or the functus officio arguments put forward for the other routes.

This Advice has been forwarded to the landowners (Routes 1 to 4). The
landowners’ solicitors have indicated it is likely they will now be instructed to
bring proceedings for an injunction to prevent the Council from making the
Orders.

The threat of an injunction is considered to be genuine, particularly as the
same landowners have previously made applications to the High Court to
quash earlier orders.  Therefore to avoid any application for an interim
injunction on an ex parte basis (ie without the attendance of one of the
parties; this is generally done as an emergency measure to prevent one party
from taking immediate action and which would be more costly for all parties),
the Orders will not be made before 31 January 2012.

In light of the above information, it is recommended that:

(@) the decision of the Highways Committee of 3 March 2011 to
make an order to add a Public Byway to the Definitive Map and
Statement of Public Rights of Way for Hartop Lane (Route 3) is
withdrawn

(b)  The information referring to the other routes is noted.

Contact: Audrey Christie 0191 383 4084

Neil Carter 0191 383 4906

Page 6



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance

Not applicable to the decision
Staffing

None

Equality and Diversity
None
Accommodation

None

Crime and disorder
None

Sustainability

None

Human rights

The County Council, as Surveying Authority, has to make a decision in accordance
with the law and in particular the provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.
Given these legal criteria, a decision to make an order would be lawful despite any

other rights of individuals.
Localities and Rurality
None

Young people

None

Consultation

Decision based on legal advice from Counsel

Health

None

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



T
-- = s v
o o L TN, fewes 2 | dmprewoy / -
I} = " ¥ ) g o e w-u.-uvluﬂw« =
i I . » peagl suopjesijdde AemAq L~ % BN s s & Y - A
i 4 13edl Wb .
Hﬂ.__u — BT e ...uv.:\ h.. a|epsaa] pue ajepieap\ .§wﬁq-m.._ Mi@ : 7 arsaqRER  doors | e. i _.wl__sum—
=
r—ﬂm ‘.l‘-“m"hk w._ W anoR Ll e ﬂ‘(nu-» __”.q e o <t U.- \w‘n “4 N- 2 9
L b o poam iy s jse3 o i _-&_L a b ] 8P Py .:.-“‘ Al e
’ =, - — o
- TEu. aNuBUUNL) 7 4 o vopiog sgsnoy| uEam a.ﬂn»»un»__rnuuaip:n e Traaas _%.sb.n?: P e aum unysalbfig ( 595 ARY S d qmog \1@1@. ERET %
=3_ o) .nu\.+ X b e | uq-lgﬂ ok adoysa ags i ?r Bypaiig " c. ey " i a
i raa n e o 3 w/u ¥ .
# i ongerd | b b4 & ) uono) /
i ui.mawﬂ ﬂhﬁqvmﬂ s !-._n“ﬁ.!_nw ﬂv\n\u o ) dai iy Al - Y UOUILID?) B1IEMIES01)
H g _H—u_ 00! ; ] — * 1 ey -
# L) Jm—i L .__ u oLy ‘.__ I »aﬂ.nu:nnu\uuwuu j 7 P S— prroi- i
i e % ow edpug ), & ﬁhw HE e T e w by JEEyYy — . ‘wr.w,o
- N /3 T ey hopaq - 4
" tnﬂ-ﬁ.i wisg oy T xuu_m b ﬁ . 2 \_ ..\muo \ i ajepsaa | -u N ] jfﬁ >
,_m.i T nzaktig. w iy tne:,,,‘i.m wm_nv s M0 _ o %, v
4 4 v b wyaung 27 Weso : g 1osgapusipoom .
H aiin s,  WEIUH or by i ueyosigls mmsu ss0d W ¥ / + ,“\ w07 Vi S
! 7 e
ma,:w NN nq BN T : S Eom' I T— 7N, Puep 3._:3., sﬁg\u \\\f}s.am,uﬂﬂm pmop
e .s!.!...l._ Jocy T i =
P (e qomns = Suy oo sdeus o 2 o ..uEnwv i ~ ) N
=  puepany Poom s 1 F e
m_ P b UK IS  gqzmgy 70 w 05013 410D S e / / | ,. uiBbigman
(= Wasa) | g a s, uowwoy 1663 / Avioqprers kst
~ 5 : /
# aepu ] a2 K 0y g - 3 A o
4 EE . ] ;
By . 1 - i \
S ._pﬁm.wmtuﬁ%__ Y, ST P s . o ¢ &
[ wmtn aq_..c_:u R B.E“ﬁ yBig s < ; N zaam%b-c, .“\f/
5091 N
- 78098 ...ﬁm._m o By 2 xy Kussgpyog) oo ), |
. v
0 ‘ T wsﬁﬁs 5 woer.|  PEOY edoyuess pio 9 : s oty |
g d OHSIH [P i S i\ T s 3
3 e A o :\ 25puppi) J. iy, % — .wa@ — .hw \..1 i
= o ===F=2F%, \
4| S ey ORI, st .y wass i 3 S S, T, il i @
g s Sian g Wi - pr Y ) /
L o i % 3 73 ) 1Y \.:a.n e O | woy Aspraiswers /.m Y /-&wv
‘.n___ T = s /f.{.u J w_..... hu_—ﬂan_.-—mx ey dopy .s)ﬂw& \ ' sz3SEEE — %, o NOWWOI N G/h Fraaqaiw LY i aaid
a E Y 1™ 656)
A 1 Aspiigg iy b . E8M-91 UOTHM ( ."“ Py !4.1 b o .mwv =/ 3 . SueT UoIBIPPIN | Sy A - iy SaRiseEy ﬁ \ %,
¥ /
L9 e19 1yfiy \ o tezs, 04 A - " = j s - A .r z
_ L\NA TS N e i uny | uorsang —F N\ G 3
) AoImuny [ R iy, 3 mor ; : + —_— Vi / 7. \ :
E ‘5 ene — I ;ﬁwj .\\ i o €| 7 / = / LS R
2mum % ~ " e Y % - / \ F adf
A e _s._.___ Eﬂﬁ_ﬁ__m J ool iaéi: L /&, wyepasphiq b y R e.u_ _ % \ﬁ..n ] 7 vy \ J ;
W R ap o i .Eéz,oz ahq-n»un»_.u.u B N, ' / & o / ) \ — | oo adowusaiso
ol % e 8|-uapmoy =5, e, S Yy / i & o~ / o
3| N N o= ? ( i\ 3a0u11108 | L~ 7]
» . 4 50 i |- { W NOWWO2 - - ( [/
Jrea -k { iy Rl T SR /. A, G S O
mog 2 Dy J JUINGYIEIE EET) o P Yy ..u_u_—w“s_cuwiuut aue QOtN—-— € % | 3 iﬂ!ﬂﬂt E_.-!E /../ ot % 3 \ﬁr 1 ¥t
o aoy (4 b ™ : == sp0s no T e e \V\ 2
70 'S Gor { 'y \un 0 A iy i \ 5 . " S R
F g P o Yo et g e b = ¥, /
+ & el i ~ B .“.mw
L ey - Sestsdapuy an D \ - /
1% W_ TR o s . :
1 JULTTTTH g . voibgmay Ha5 5 e aﬁﬂi i . A PUTIH  ssopy youeuen “ 3
" Y - x Q - 5 —— m g,.ﬂ.a .wwuv.n abpikg lsog ot iling
i ua.a,r‘ﬁ ~nno.v 3 st WO i == = 2 =5 B A § a
1835 EU0)S, & i -~ =
¢ wag SEEIN 0wppoy I — Y4 savv  Kapajsoly e ..*:E%hai
1 . . " % ) Ay Wy may
i s \ pesuayen | P oo TV I ey Ve
it Moy Allge, 7 o .“a o NG
3 : <~ s fass? ] \ *
o Aopyosis A e e N F 204 fgong
S yoory laers {3 3 et [ i ; i
wa g sy by .s_._.SML rnnnnnw f
A W e MO 7 el L E
Py [ -~ meq 1 &
b 'M
g 750 Lo g  seputnog aue-] dojosnoH § i e Ay N
3 3 € o .P. I Sl S Sy frinmin | hy I
.._bnE: Ri;-.m_ IitH o iy ;_ustnuh.w v ;u.n“\_h n»ﬂnn” |nccﬂv‘m [TETTTIE) = _ /
= - e ok 4 E
- oo e, b gheer” R mey . " W weybusiop %w\ apsemen ([ %)
3 oo = Wdoorg iy ( V/ H
. sasnoyiaien s 1583 7 v ¢
oy, ~T- £ ioojoims K r// nuuwm 00J Y28l WBYBUHSIOM um?
i ¢ sexy - ; P | N sorsEsay 3
F=3 op iy OF 12EN > e 5
= » ,_“,_. e _....u.‘x WS 1S3 £ s L, i -ceum
s & - METRUO) ey o
,V P iy iy o] 4 “Prg o ¥ J
T X - ey - o e i 0 %S w
Al ot w0ig = off L i e,
_.\w > ue|d MaIAIBAQ oH s % \ |M.m v - :a!|u b .,,r.ﬁ..u saneg / x i odou e QamN#
Lt Kesod % cagf T Ol J Aurvar) } L)
\riwmo x— CQQQ< e 2 TR 7 i gy T _ _. ) 4 énﬂun.uﬁl __ﬂ_q i 1004 yuig
W - Moy Mo , i8. = w i . y { = <y i
S5y 1 - ‘ <98 .uuhwmw " e ” d% S, S / - B
b : 3 1109 y 2ol ! g \
hl - souud Laci s




Page 10

Appendix B

Durham County Council
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Section 53

Definitive Map Modification Applications concerning
Pikestone Fell, Stanhope Road, Middleton Lane,
Hartop Lane, Old Stanhope Road,

Coal Lane and Houselop Lane

Further Advice
in the light of the Joint Opinion
of George Laurence QC and Ross Crail
dated 31 March 2011

Background

I have previously advised Durham County Council (“the Council”) in this matter,
on 17 December 2010, concerning the so-called Winchester argument that the
various applications made by Mr Snoddy between 1992 and 1995 may not have
been properly “made” for the purposes of Schedule 14 to the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 (“the 1981 Act”), and accordingly did not attract the
exemption from extinguishment of vehicular rights contained in section 67(3) of
the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (“the 2006 Act”).

I expressed the view that, notwithstanding the authority of both R (Winchester
College) v Hampshire County Council [2008] EWCA Civ 431, [2009] 1 WLR
138 and Maroudas v Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
[2010] EWCA Civ 280, the five applications made by Mr Snoddy in this matter
were all validly made.



3. Since receiving my advice the Council has resolved to make modification orders
which, if confirmed, would have the effect of adding' six byways open to all
traffic to its Definitive Map and Statement, but has undertaken not to act upon its
resolution without giving at least seven days notice to certain of the affected
landowners of its intention to do so, in order to give those landowners the
opportunity, should they decide to do so, to apply to the High Court for an
injunction to prevent the Council from acting on its resolution (in the manner of R
v Wiltshire County Council, ex p Nettlecombe Estates Ltd [1998] JPL 707). The
Council has also received a copy of a Joint Opinion from George Laurence QC
and Ross Crail, dated 31 March 2011 and addressed to the landowners concerned,
responding to my Advice of 17 December 2010 (which had been made available
to the various landowners), and expressing their opinion that such an application
to the High Court would be likely to be successful on the basis that the Council
has clearly erred in law by resolving to make the modification orders.

4. The Joint Opinion addresses the six routes as follows, and I propose to do the
same below: Middleton Lane (route 1); Pikestone Lane and Stanhope Road
(Lane) (route 2); Hartop Lane (route 3); Coal Lane (route 4); Houselop Lane
(route 5); and Old Stanhope Road (route 6). It does not directly address routes 4
and 5 (because they do not cross land in the ownership of those to whom the Joint
Opinion is addressed), but the Joint Opinion suggests, not unreasonably, that
similar points might be made in respect of them.

5. The Joint Opinion addresses not only the Winchester argument, but also two
further arguments advanced by the relevant landowners: first, that the Council,
having previously determined the relevant applications2 and made modification
orders, now has no power to determine them again and make further orders in
respect of these routes because it is functus officio; and, secondly, that the
exemption in section 67(3) of the 2006 act does not apply to an application
“which had been finally disposed of adversely to the applicant before 2 May 2006
when section 67 came into force” (quoted from paragraph 3 of the Joint Opinion).
I will call these the functus officio argument, and the section 67(3) argument,
although, as the Joint Opinion accepts, they are closely related.

" In some instances by upgrading existing routes.

%It is accepted in the Joint Opinion that this argument does not extend to route 6, in connection with which
no order has ever been made. I understand that the same is true of routes 4 and 5 (i.e. the High Court Order
of 20 July 2000 extended only to routes 1 and 2).

Page 11



The functus officio argument
Route 3

I agree with the view expressed at paragraph 6 of the Joint Opinion that the
committee resolution of 3 March 2011 to make a modification order in respect of
route 3 should not be acted on. Route 3 was not the subject of High Court
proceedings (unlike routes 1 and 2), because the order in relation to route 3 was
not confirmed by the Inspector. I agree with the Joint Opinion that, in the absence
of any judicial review proceedings at the time,” that is the end of the matter as far
as route 3 is concerned. There is no subsisting application left to be determined.

Routes 1 and 2 (the argument has no possible application to routes 4, 5 and 6,
in respect of which no modification orders have ever been made or determined
to be made)

The argument based on the Council being functus officio in respect of routes 1 and
2 is more complex. Halsbury’s Laws at Volume 61 (Judicial Review, 5™ ed,
2010), para 611, states the doctrine in this way:

“A body may by taking a valid decision exhaust its powers such that
any further decision on the same matter will be made without
Jurisdiction or vires. Such a body may be described as functus
officio.”

The Joint Opinion does not refer to any authority as to the operation or extent of
the doctrine. It is clear that its operation depends very much upon the precise
statutory powers under consideration: a great many of the decided cases, for
example, being concerned with the powers of magistrates, coroners and the like to
reopen apparently completed determinations of matters before them. I am not
aware of any authority directly on the question of the application of the doctrine
in the context of the Council’s functions under the 1981 Act, but the following
examples from other fields provide at least some guidance as to how a court
would be likely to approach this particular statutory context.

In Aparau v Iceland Frozen Foods plc [2000] 1 All ER 228, [2000] ICR 341, the
Court of Appeal considered the actions of an industrial tribunal which, on referral
back to it of a specific issue by an Employment Appeal Tribunal, went beyond the

3 And subject only to the possibility of a very strict view of the operation of the 2006 Act, considered
briefly below at footnote 9, and which I do not advise the Council to seek to maintain.

Page 12



matter specifically referred to it to consider wider questions. Moore-Bick J, with
whom the rest of the court agreed, reasoned as follows:

“The 1993 regulations made under the 1978 Act continue to govern
the constitution and procedures of industrial tribunals by virtue of s
1(2) of the Industrial Tribunals Act 1996. Rule 11 of Sch I to the 1993
regulations gives industrial tribunals a limited power to review their
decision but does not give them any general right to reopen
proceedings once they have been disposed of by a final decision. It
follows, in my judgment, that an industrial tribunal, like any other
tribunal, has exhausted its jurisdiction once it has delivered a final
decision disposing of all the issues before it. Thereafter, apart from
the limited power of review given by r 11 of Sch 1 to the 1993
regulations, it has no power to reopen the hearing or reconsider its
decision unless the matter is remitted to it for that purpose by the
Employment Appeal Tribunal. The Employment Appeal Tribunal, now
established under s 20(1) of the Industrial Tribunals Act 1996, has
power to hear appeals on questions of law arising out of decisions of
industrial tribunals. Under s 35(1)(b) it has power for the purposes of
disposing of an appeal to remit the case to the industrial tribunal for
Sfurther consideration. That power is clearly wide enough to allow it to
remit the case for reconsideration generally or for a more limited
purpose as appropriate.

The effect of an order remitting a case to a tribunal which had
otherwise exhausted its jurisdiction was considered by this court in
the context of arbitral proceedings in Interbulk Ltd v Aiden Shipping
Co Ltd, The Vimeira (No 1) [1985] 2 Lloyd's Rep 410. Ackner LJ
pointed out that the extent to which the tribunal's jurisdiction is
revived in consequence of an order remitting the matter to it depends
entirely on the scope of the remission. If, as occurred in the present
case, the matter is remitted for the tribunal to consider certain specific
issues, it will have no jurisdiction to hear or determine matters outside
the scope of those issues, and it must follow that it has no power to
allow one party to amend its case to raise issues which were not
previously before it. In the present case it is clear from the passages in
the judgment of the Employment Appeal Tribunal to which I have
already referred that remission was ordered in very limited terms
simply to enable the industrial tribunal to reconsider whether
Iceland's new terms of employment had been accepted by Mrs Aparau.
That being so, the tribunal did not by virtue of the remission have
Jurisdiction to reopen the case generally, nor did it have jurisdiction
to hear or determine any argument on the part of Iceland relating to
the fairness of any dismissal. Although Mr Glennie sought to persuade
us to the contrary, I for my part am quite satisfied that that was not an

Page 13



10.

11.

Page 14

issue which had previously been raised in the proceedings and it was
certainly not within the scope of the remission.”

The Court of Appeal in this passage clearly contemplates two separate issues:
first, and generally, “that an industrial tribunal, like any other tribunal, has
exhausted its jurisdiction once it has delivered a final decision disposing of all the
issues before it”; and secondly that, if a separate appellate body has power to
remit issues to the original tribunal, then “/i]f, as occurred in the present case, the
matter is remitted for the tribunal to consider certain specific issues, it will have
no jurisdiction to hear or determine matters outside the scope of those issues”. A
further illustration of these principles in a different context is provided by R v
Parliamentary Commissioner for Administration, ex p Dyer [1994] 1 All ER 375,
[1994] 1 WLR 621, a case concerning the possible reopening of an investigation
by the PCA, following submission of his report to the MP in question. Simon
Brown LJ dealt with the matter briefly as follows:

“I come finally to Miss Dyer's complaint about the PCA's refusal to
reopen this investigation. This I can deal with altogether more
shortly. It seems to me that the PCA is clearly correct in his view
that, once his report had been sent to Mr Hattersley and the DSS
(as required by s 10(1) and (2)), he was functus officio and unable
to reopen the investigation without a further referral under s 5(1).
Section 5(5), as already indicated, confers a wide discretion
indeed; it does not, however, purport to empower the PCA to
reopen an investigation once his report is submitted. It would seem
to me unfair to the department and outside the scheme of this
legislation to suppose that the PCA could do as Miss Dyer wished.”

The High Court proceedings which were settled by consent in connection with Mr
Snoddy’s applications, by an order dated 20 July 2000, took place pursuant to the
provision for statutory review contained in paragraph 12 of schedule 15 to the
1981 Act, which provides that the High Court may, if satisfied of certain matters
“quash the order, or any provision of the order, either generally or in so far as it
affects the interests of the applicant”. The effect of the 2000 consent order was
simply to quash the 1997 Modification Order generally (together with making
provision for costs).

The question is therefore whether the Council remains functus officio after the
making of that consent order, or whether its jurisdiction to determine Mr
Snoddy’s applications was thereby revived. (I say “remains”, because I have no



doubt that it would have been appropriate to have described the Council as
functus officio from the point when it submitted the Modification Order for
consideration by the Secretary of State (as an ‘opposed’ order, pursuant to
paragraph 7 of Schedule 15 to the 1981 Act) until the High Court consent order
took effect. Clearly the Council had no jurisdiction to do anything further with
respect to the Modification Order while it waited first for the Secretary of State to
determine whether or not to confirm it, and then for the outcome of the High
Court challenge.”)

12.  The Joint Opinion is correct to observe that the High Court did not specifically
remit the matter to the Council for further consideration: it simply quashed the,
until-then confirmed, Modification Order. Again, and equally clearly, that ended
any role for the Secretary of State in the matter — there was no longer any
submitted Modification Order for the Secretary of State to consider. But where
did that leave the Council?

13. In my opinion the better view is that the effect of the consent order was indeed to
revive the Council’s jurisdiction to consider Mr Snoddy’s applications concerning
routes 1 and 2. Bearing in mind the existing authorities on the operation of
functus officio, this is so for two reasons.

First (and relying on the Halsbury definition of functus officio set out at paragraph
7 above’) once the High Court order had taken effect it was no longer true to say
that the Council had taken “a valid decision” which had “exhaust[ed] its powers
such that any further decision on the same matter will be made without
Jjurisdiction or vires.” In terms of the way in which the Council’s jurisdiction is
helpfully broken down in paragraph 4 of the Joint Opinion, the last 3 of the 7
elements of the Council’s jurisdiction (i.e. making, advertising and submitting the
Modification Order) had no longer validly been done: they had been quashed.
And the effect of such a quashing order, once it has taken effect — and whatever
may be true of the Modification Order’s status prior to its being quashed — is
clear. As Lord Irvine of Lairg LC put it in Boddington v British Transport Police
[1999] 2 AC 143 at 155, [1998] 2 All ER 203 at 210:

* No doubt it could have applied to be joined in the proceedings: the point is that it (as opposed to the High
Court at that stage) had no jurisdiction to do anything further, directly, itself, as regards the status of the
Modification Order.

> And the passage from Aparau set out at paragraph 9 above: “that an industrial tribunal, like any other
tribunal, has exhausted its jurisdiction once it has delivered a final decision disposing of all the issues
before it” [emphasis added].

Page 15



“Subordinate legislation, or an administrative act, is sometimes said
to be presumed lawful until it has been pronounced to be unlawful.
This does not, however, entail that such legislation or act is valid
until quashed prospectively ... In my judgment, the true effect of the
presumption is that the legislation or act which is impugned is
presumed to be good until pronounced to be unlawful, but is then
recognised as never having had any legal effect at all.” [emphasis
added].

14. In my view the Council cannot be functus officio as a result of acts now properly

“recognised as never having had any legal effect at all”.°

15. The further reason why I suggest that this is the better analysis is that clear
analogies exist elsewhere. In the context of judicial review generally, there is of
course express provision (see section 31(5) of the Senior Courts Act 1981) for the
High Court to remit a matter back to be determined properly by the decision
making tribunal according to law:

“31 (5) If, on an application for judicial review, the High Court
quashes the decision to which the application relates, it may in
addition—

(a) remit the matter to the court, tribunal or authority which made
the decision, with a direction to reconsider the matter and reach a
decision in accordance with the findings of the High Court, or

(b) substitute its own decision for the decision in question.”

16. But such an express power is not always provided in instances of specific
statutory review (just as it is not in paragraph 12 of Schedule 15 to the 1981 Act).

% Nor can it assist the contrary view to suggest that the Council is somehow rendered functus officio by its
previous decision to make the Modification Order in this case, as opposed to the making, advertising and
submitting of the actual order (which decision has not been quashed). It is clear on first principles that the
Council remains free to revisit that decision unless and until it actually seals a valid order — as is of course
recognized by the procedure now being adopted in connection with the new order(s) now proposed to be
made - i.e. of pausing before acting upon them. There is no suggestion (in the Joint Opinion, nor now on
behalf of the Council) that the Council is rendered functus by its recent (3 March 2011) resolution in
respect of route 3. Nor can there be any suggestion that the Council had no power to reconsider its earlier
decision to make the order in respect of the other routes prior to the making (and, we say, continuing
existence) of a valid Modification Order. Such a decision alone is clearly incapable of providing the basis
for an argument based upon functus officio; and, since all subsequent steps which the Council had power to
make have been quashed, there simply is no legal substratum for the functus argument.

Page 16



17.

18.

For example, in the well-known context of section 288(5)(b) of the Town and
Country Planning act 1980, the power to quash is not (unlike in the instance of
judicial review) accompanied by an express power either for the High Court itself
to determine the matter, or for it to be remitted back to the relevant decision
maker for further consideration. Nevertheless it is well-established that, if the
High Court is appropriately satisfied, the effect of the Court’s quashing order is
that the planning inquiry must be reopened to enable a fresh determination to be
made. See for example Sachs J in Hartnell v Minister of Housing and Local
Government [1963] 3 All ER 130 at 138 (decided under a predecessor section to
section 288):

“In those circumstances, the minister's order, in so far as it dismisses
the appeal to him in relation to those two conditions, must be quashed.
It is, however, to be noted that under the terms of s 31(6) of the Town
and Country Planning Act, 1959, which govern the present
application to the High Court it is not open to this court to substitute
any order for that made by the minister: the order quashing the
minister's decision is thus in the present case somewhat akin to an
order remitting the matter to him for further consideration. The result
is that the appeal to him as initiated by the notice dated 12 December
1961, is still pending. It is thus for him in due course to make such
order as he may deem proper after ascertaining such further facts as
may be necessary to enable him to make a decision in accordance
with a correct view of the law.”

Here the matter goes back to the Secretary of State rather than to a prior decision-
making body; but the principle is clear. There is nothing in a quashing order
without more to justify an argument that the appropriate decision-making body is
thus rendered unable to re-determine the matter properly. Quite the opposite.
And it would of course undermine one of the key justifications for providing for
judicial involvement in errors of law made by inferior tribunals at all. Such
involvement is not provided such that hollow victories can be won, and decision-
making stymied. It is provided so that errors can be reconsidered and put right.’

7 See also H Sabey & Co Ltd v Secretary of State for the Environment [1978] 1 All ER 586,
[1977] JPL 661 in which the High Court considered an alleged breach of natural justice where the
Secretary of State determined a planning matter without giving the losing side a sufficient
opportunity to address the particular issue (“the moisture question”) on which the decision was
founded. Willis J concluded his decision as follows:

“In the circumstances of this case I do not think anyone is to blame, but I am left

with the strong feeling that justice will not be done unless the applicants are

afforded an opportunity to present their evidence on the 'moisture question' before

the Secretary of State reaches his final conclusion. Accordingly the decision must

be quashed.

Page 17



19.

20.

For all of these reasons my opinion is that the better view is that the Council is not
functus officio in respect of these matters as suggested by the Joint Opinion. The
point is not a straightforward one, and there are arguments in each direction; but
the weight of authority assembled here, and consideration of the matter from the
standpoint of fundamental principles of public law, is in my view convincing. My
estimation of the prospects of their success, on this ground alone, were the
landowners concerned to seek an injunction to prevent the Council making the
orders that it has determined to make in respect of routes 1 and 2, is that they are
no better than around 25-30%. l.e. I think that it is 70-75% likely that no
injunction would be granted in respect of routes 1 and 2 on the basis of the functus
officio argument.

The section 67(3) argument

It seems ultimately to be accepted in the Joint Opinion that this argument can only
succeed if the functus officio argument also succeeds, and so I do not propose to
deal with it in any detail. I am not convinced, however, as the Joint Opinion
appears to suggest, that it makes a difference whether such an (earlier) application
was in due course determined by the relevant authority in favour of the claimed
vehicular routes or against them: in either case section 67(3) serves to save the
vehicular rights from statutory extinguishment while their existence or non-
existence is finally determined under the old law through the 1981 Act process
(for example in circumstances where an initial decision by the relevant authority
not to make an order were to be successfully overturned by a schedule 14 appeal
to the Secretary of State; such a chain of events would, appropriately and fairly,
be allowed to run its course). Section 67(3)(b) is as similarly broad as is section
67(3)(a) in this respect, i.e. it does not restrict its saving effect to an initial
determination in favour of the vehicular rights by the relevant authority:® which is
again support for the wide-ranging effect of these exemptions. They appear to
have been crafted to protect the status quo whilst matters were in train under the
1981 Act processes, rather than only when those processes were inclining towards

I only add that while, of course, it is a matter entirely for the Secretary of State,

there being no longer any criticism of the decision save in this one particular, one

can naturally hope that any rehearing can be limited to this single question.”
The Court clearly regarded the quashing order alone as sufficient to revivify the Secretary of
State’s jurisdiction — albeit expressing the hope that it might be possible for any reconsideration to
be confined to a particular issue.

¥ Based after all only on the reasonable allegation of the rights concerned (see section 53(3)(c)(i) of the
1981 Act, and R v Secretary of State for Wales, ex p Emery [1996] 4 All ER 1.

Page 18



confirming the claimed rights. But I agree with the Joint Opinion that, in this
case, and assuming that the DEFRA Guidance referred to in paragraph 11 of the
Joint Opinion is right that the application of section 67(3) is limited to
“outstanding” applications,9 then the matter ultimately comes back to the functus
officio point: is there still a 1981 Act process in train or not? I have already
indicated my view on that question.

The Winchester argument

21. I agree with the Joint Opinion that the issue of whether Mr Snoddy’s applications
were validly ‘made’ raises the kinds of questions — and they are not
straightforward questions — listed within paragraph 13 of the Joint Opinion. In
particular, and taking route 2 by way of example, it raises directly the question of
whether a written Commentary describing the claimed effect of two Inclosure
Awards (the Hamsterley, Lynesack, Softly and South Bedburn; and Wolsingham
Common Awards'®), and setting out elements of the Awards on which the
applicant relies, and attaching an “index sheet” for each Award (bearing the
Durham University Library stamp, and which provides a modern summary of the
content of each award), and in each case including an explanation that:

“This inclosure is available for inspection at Durham University,
5 The College, Durham City (Tel: 091 374 3610). Due to the
considerable expense of copying, I am unable to provide copies of
the inclosure in this submission”

together with an offer to meet with Council officers to discuss the
application at a mutually convenient time, gains the benefit of one or more of the
principles that lex non cogit ad impossibilia (the law will not compel the
impossible), de minimis non curat lex (the law is not concerned with small
things), or of the Court of Appeal’s express recognition that “minor departures
from paragraph 1 will not invalidate an application”, or, in circumstances where
there is no suggestion that the surveying authority'' challenged Mr Snoddy’s

? Although it obviously remains possible to assert (although I do not advise the Council to do so) a literal
interpretation of section 67(3), which would preserve vehicular rights wherever applications have
previously been made at all prior to the relevant date, or such applications determined — one way or the
other — prior to commencement.

' The first award running in full to some 150 pages, and the second to more than 300 pages.

""'No doubt aware of the practicality and advantage of directing the authority to full originals of large,
fragile, old, manuscript documents, which would need to be looked at in due course as originals in any
event - as they frequently have to be as highway officers prepare advice to surveying authorities and as
Inspectors at public inquiries prepare advice to the Secretary of State.

10

Page 19



22.

23.

24.

25.

Page 20

explanation, of Dyson LJ’s indication that “[i]t should not be difficult for a
surveying authority (or if necessary the court) to verify the explanation given by
the applicant for his failure to copy a particular document.”

I also agree that these issues were simply not decided in either of the Winchester
or Maroudas cases. Those two authorities provide straightforward examples of
applications that were clearly not properly made, but give rather less indication of
how exactly the line is to be drawn in more difficult cases.

I also agree, generally, with the view expressed in paragraph 14 of the Joint
Opinion that it cannot be necessary to provide a copy of an entire document if
only part of it will be relevant to the decision making body (although I do not
accept, as is suggested within the same paragraph, that an application would fail
to be properly made merely through the failure also to provide a copy of the title
page). Nor that an application would cease to be properly made if, on further
investigation by the surveying authority, or by a landowner, or by an expert
witness, or whomsoever, it emerged that material relevant to the application was
contained in parts of documents that had not been provided. I do not consider,
whatever may have been said by the Court of Appeal in the context of the clear
failures in the Winchester and Maroudas decisions, that ‘failures’ of this type
would be held by a court, with the facts of Mr Snoddy’s applications in front of it,
to denature the applications. I accordingly remain of the opinion, and without
rehearsing the full detail of my earlier Advice, that the applications concerning
routes 1 and 2 were properly made, and accordingly rights for mechanically-
propelled preserved by section 67(3) of the 2006 Act.

The Joint Opinion concludes at paragraph 22 that the prospects of persuading a
court to hold now, rather than leave for an Inspector to decide, that these
applications were non-compliant to a more than de minimis extent “are reasonably
good”; and that, combined with the view taken of the prospects of success of the
Jfunctus and section 67(3) arguments, there is “a good prospect (well over 50%)
that the court will be persuaded to restrain the Council from making orders
showing the routes as byways on the basis that it will plainly be erring in law in
so doing.”

I do not agree. I have already indicated my view that the prospects of success of
an application for an injunction on the basis of the functus (and section 67(3)
argument) are no better than 25-30%. I think it is right to be a little more cautious

11



26.

27.

in respect of the Winchester argument, because those authorities clearly do
provide an apparent basis for such an application; but, as I have indicated, I am
not of the view that that apparent basis would survive full examination by the
court. I accordingly estimate the prospects of success of the Winchester argument
in leading to an injunction being granted as no higher than 40%. I.e. I think it at
least 60% likely that an injunction would not be granted in respect of routes 1 and
2 on the basis of the Winchester argument.

Route 6
Of the routes addressed directly by the Joint Opinion, route 6 is the one where no

question of the functus argument arises (as it also does not do in relation to routes
4 and 5). The Joint Opinion therefore accepts that all turns on the Winchester
argument, and (looking at it from the landowners’ point of view) the Winchester
argument appears weaker because the application is not based upon inclosure
evidence, but on maps, extracts from which accompanied the application. Despite
what is argued in paragraphs 23 to 32 of the Joint Opinion, I consider that the
prospects of the landowners obtaining an injunction in respect of route 6, based as
it would have to be solely on the Winchester argument are no stronger than 25%.
Le. I think it at least 75% likely that an injunction would not be granted in respect
of route 6 on the basis of the Winchester argument.

The significance of the possible existence of rights for non-mechanically
propelled vehicles

The Joint Opinion does not address the fact that the Winchester argument, even if
ultimately successful to disapply the saving provision of section 67(3), would still
leave untouched any question of the existence of highway rights for non-
mechanically propelled vehicles, or indeed for the existence of bridleway or
footpath rights. It is true that the functus argument, if successful, would prevent
the surveying authority from determining Mr Snoddy’s applications as such, but it
would still leave it subject to its general section 53 duty to consider whether to
make such orders — unaffected by the section 67(3) point so far as such lesser
rights are concerned. In my view this important point makes it all the more
unlikely that a court would be persuaded to grant an injunction preventing these
orders from being made on the basis that a clear error of law has been made by
the authority, as in the Wiltshire case. By far the better process is for the various
arguments to be considered together by an Inspector, who will in any event need
to consider — even if the landowners were successful both in respect of the functus

12

Page 21



and the Winchester arguments — whether or not lesser rights existed, which matter
he, unlike the High Court, would be in a position to resolve by, if appropriate,
modifying the orders so as, for example, to show restricted byways or bridleways.

Edwin Simpson
New Square Chambers
Lincoln’s Inn

30 September 2011

13

Page 22



Durham County Council
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Section 53

Definitive Map Modification Applications concerning
Pikestone Fell, Stanhope Road, Middleton Lane,
Hartop Lane, Old Stanhope Road,

Coal Lane and Houselop Lane

Further Advice

in the light of the Joint Opinion

of George Laurence QC and Ross Crail
dated 31 March 2011

C Longbottom
County Hall
Durham

14

Page 23



Page 24

Appendix C

Extract from Highways Committee report of 3 March 2011

12

13

14

15

‘The Winchester argument’

The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act (NERC) 2006
determined that where a route was not shown on the Definitive Map
and Statement as of 2 May 2006 then rights for mechanically propelled
vehicles would be extinguished other than where a specified exception
applies. One of the legislation’s aims was to prevent rights for motor
vehicles over routes, like those being considered here, being
established where they had been created as highways at a time before
motor vehicles existed. All the applications were made prior to 20
January 2005 and therefore on the face of it meet one of the specified
exemptions set out in Section 67 (3) of the NERC Act.

However the saving provisions of this subsection were closely
considered by the Court of Appeal in the case of R (Warden and
Fellows of Winchester College and another) v Hampshire County
Council 2008.). That case turned on whether the application had been
properly ‘made’ for the purposes of Section 67(3). The Court held that
an application can only be properly made if it complies with all the
provisions of paragraph 1 of Schedule 14 to the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 (i.e. it is made in the prescribed form,
accompanied by a map drawn to the prescribed scale and
accompanied by any documentary evidence (including statements of
witnesses) which the applicant wishes to adduce in support of the
application).

Therefore it is important to decide whether or not these applications
were properly ‘made’ and meet all the provisions of paragraph 1 of
Schedule 14 to the 1981 Act. The effect of Section 67(1) of the NERC
Act means that if a right of way for mechanically propelled vehicles
can be established on the documentary evidence presented but the
application is not properly ‘made’, then the application for byway status
would fail with the appropriate status being that of restricted byway.

Given the detailed findings in the Winchester case, Counsel’s advice
was obtained on whether each of the applications before this
Committee could be considered to be properly ‘made’ under the above
mentioned statutory provisions. The Advice is attached at Document
OM. However it is a matter for this Committee to decide on the
evidence before it as to whether the applications meet these criteria.



Agenda Item 4

Highways Committee
22 November 2011

Durham Gate
Speed restrictions and access
restrictions

Report of lan Thompson Corporate Director Regeneration and
Economic development

Councillor Neil Foster, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and
Economic Development

1.0 Purpose

1.1  To advise Members of the objections received to the formal
consultation on the proposed traffic regulation orders controlling speed
limits and access restrictions at Durham Gate, Thinford.

1.2  To request members to consider the objections made during the formal
consultation exercise.

2.0 Background

2.1  Atthe planning stage of the Durham Gate development, it was
intended that traffic for the Industrial estate, commercial centre, and
residential development should be segregated. This is to be achieved
through providing access for residential traffic from Green Lane
roundabout Enterprise Way, access for commercial traffic from Thinford
Roundabout and access for Industrial traffic via the A167 and York Hill
Road roundabout. This strategy required restricted access to the
Industrial Estate traffic.

2.2  The approved development at Durham Gate will generate demand for
access from car drivers, pubic transport users, cyclists and
pedestrians. It is estimated that up to an additional 7,000 car trips per
day, 525 pedestrians trips per day and 680 public transport trips per
day could be made to the development in addition to the current traffic
on the network.

2.3  The Industrial Estate traffic is to be directed to use the York Hill Road
access from the A167 via appropriate highway signage. To assist in
controlling access, traffic regulation orders have been promoted which
would introduce No Entry restriction on Enterprise Way and a no right
turn/ left turn at the York Hill Road/ Meadowfield Avenue junction.

Page 25



24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

3.0

3.1

3.2

Page 26

In order to accommodate the increased traffic levels, Thinford
roundabout is to be signalised and the central island and approaches
re engineered. It is therefore considered appropriate to amend the
speed limits at the roundabout approaches to reflect the amended
deflection at the junction and the increased vehicular and vulnerable
road user activity.

In order to facilitate safe movement of vehicles and vulnerable road
users at the junction approaches it has been proposed that the current
60mph speed limit is reduced to 40mph.

Early proposals were subject to consultation at the planning stage. The
Fire and Rescue service based on York Hill Road responded to the
proposal to prohibit vehicles from Enterprise Way by requesting a
relaxation of the restriction for their vehicles on emergency call.

A proposal was developed to introduce the ‘No Entry except
emergency service vehicles’ at Enterprise Way, north of Watson Court.
This was deemed acceptable by the Fire and Rescue Service. Durham
Constabulary were consulted at the planning stage and offered no
objection to the No Entry proposal. No objection to this specific
measure was offered by the Green Lane residents association at the
planning stage.

Following formal advertising of the Council’s intention to introduce
access restrictions and amended speed limits two objections have
been received. One from Green Lane Residents Association (GLRA)
and one from Durham Constabulary.

Objection 1 Green Lane Residents Association

The GLRA have engaged with the developers, officers of the Council
and the Cabinet Portfolio holder to raise a number of concerns relating
to the development. Specifically they sought to restrict vehicular use of
Green Lane by development generated traffic. The cabinet portfolio
holder has sought to allay concerns and address issues raised. The
resident’s association have taken the opportunity to raise these issues
again through the formal consultation for traffic regulations and are
pressing for a prohibition of entry except for access at the Green Lane /
Enterprise Way junction.

The grounds for objection to the Enterprise Way ‘No Entry’, the York
Hill Road restrictions and the amended speed limits are:-

a) The omission of a bus gate from the final development proposals.

b) The potential for ‘rat running’ through Green Lane from and to the
development.

c) The York Hill Road restriction will divert traffic to Green Lane



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.0

5.1

Response

In developing the highway network to serve the Durham Gate
development a number of factors have been considered, not least the
distribution of traffic on the network and where possible addressing
impact through mitigation.

Proposals sought to deter ‘rat running’ traffic which may seek to avoid
the Thinford signalised junction. Initial proposals sought to achieve this
with a bus only restriction within the development. However, land
ownership issues prevented its introduction. This proposal was
subsequently replaced with a highway network design which
discouraged through traffic. The bus gate issue is separate to that of
the restrictions under consideration.

The GLRA concerns about rat running through Green Lane are noted.
However, it is contested that the introduction of the ‘No Entry’ on
Enterprise Way will discourage Industrial Estate traffic from using
Green Lane. The restrictions at York Hill Road and speed limits would
appear to have little relevance to the issue of rat running through Green
Lane.

Restrictions at York Hill Road are designed to prevent Industrial Estate
traffic from entering or leaving Meadowfield Avenue other than using
the A167 York Hill Road Roundabout. The objector's concerns are on
the grounds that, if vehicles are prevented from turning right from York
Hill Road into the development, they will instead use Green Lane as
access to the development.

The proposed restriction on Enterprise Way would prevent access to
the Industrial. It is highly unlikely that traffic will choose to use Green
Lane as an alternative access to the development. Commercial traffic
will enter the development via the Thinford roundabout junction and
residential traffic will use the A688 / Enterprise Way junction. The A688
provides a more suitable convenient and faster access to the
development than Green Lane.

Objection 2 Durham Constabulary

Durham Constabulary have objected to two elements of the proposed
restrictions. Agreement has been reached regarding the restriction at
York Hill Road, however an objection to the Enterprise Way’ No Entry’
restriction has been submitted. The objection is based on the grounds
that the constabulary consider it is ‘unsatisfactory’ that compliance can
only be achieved by signage and the physical presence of the Police.

Page 27



5.2

5.3

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Page 28

An objection has also been made to the proposed speed restrictions on
the approach to Thinford roundabout. Initial objection to the proposed
limits on the link to the development roundabout hub (40mph) and the
East and West leg approaches to the signalised junction have been
withdrawn. However Durham Constabulary maintain the objection to
the proposed 40mph speed limit on the A167 on the approach to and
through the roundabout.

Durham Constabulary object to the 40mph speed limit on the basis
they ‘see no credible reason why the A167 should be subject to
anything other than the national speed limit of 60mph.‘ This view is
based on the physical environment of the highway and knowledge of
current road traffic accident data from the existing road layout.

Response

As stated the physical layout of the roundabout junction will change
significantly with the introduction of a signal controlled junction. As
such the operational performance of the highway will change and it is
contested that historic physical environment or historic accident records
are not relevant to the assessment of future performance.

In designing the signalised junction to accommodate increased
demand, it has been necessary to increase capacity of all approach
lanes and to move the location of the central island of the roundabout
in a westerly direction. As such deflection parameters for vehicles
travelling north south have been relaxed. This lack of deflection may
lead to inappropriate approach speeds outside peak periods.

The significant increase in activity as a result of the development will
see increased demand for local facilities and public transport facilities
from vulnerable road users. Pedestrian activity will be accommodated
at the signalised roundabout, however, there will be increased demand
for access to bus stops on the section of carriageway between Thinford
and York Hill Road and to fast food outlets and bus stops south of
Thinford roundabout.

Current Department for Transport guidance sets principles for local
speed limits. This guidance has been adopted when assessing the
appropriate speed limit for the approaches to the signalised Thinford
Roundabout. The guidance reflects on the perception of the driver of
the road environment together with the consideration of vulnerable road
users.

The guidance states 40mph speed limits are generally on higher quality
suburban roads with good width layout, parking and waiting restrictions
in operation and buildings set back from the road. The guidance also
sets out parameters for a 40mph road. These include those roads
where there is substantial development and where the road is used by
considerable numbers of vulnerable road users. ( DfT 01/2006/108)



6.6

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

It is maintained that the A167 between the new York Hill Road
roundabout and Thinford falls into the above category. The increase in
volume of vulnerable road users and the change in physical layout
would support the view to reduce the speed limit to 40mph.

Local member consultation

The Local members Councillor Neil Foster and Councillor Barbara
Graham have been consulted and offer no objection to the proposals.

Recommendation

It is RECOMMENDED that the committee set aside the objections and
endorse the introduction of the traffic regulation order containing the
‘No Entry’ on Enterprise Way and reduced speed limit on the A167 to
40 mph, North to South through the Thinford signalised junction. .

Background Papers

Correspondence and documentation on Traffic Office File and in members

library.

Contact:  John McGargill Tel: 0191 383 3456

Page 29



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance Signing and lining to be financed from developer contribution

Staffing No long term staffing implications for the County Council

Risk : There is a high risk that omitting the prohibitions of movement may result in
increased levels of traffic through residential areas. Not implementing the reduced

speed limit could result in a medium risk to increase in casualty statistics.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty : The proposals will improve
use of the highway network for vulnerable road users

Accommodation : None

Crime and Disorder The proposals will provide effective traffic management,
although recorded incidents of contravention of regulations may increase

Human Rights : None

Consultation A full consultation on the development master plan has been
undertaken at the planning stage. Informal and formal consultation has been
undertaken in accordance with the relevant statute for

Procurement: None

Disability Issues: None

Legal Implications: All orders have been advertised by the County Council as
highway authority and will be made in accordance with legislative requirements.

Page 30



V000000000090 0080000880SO N

Page 31




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



S\
N\

2 ‘\ \
'\‘
A\
\ cale:1 / 1000

| —

9
x &
6\/

Z

o g

] z;;

e\
o D
o

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



2;2;

AN

)/
/AN

TLEv2)

/

rage—oo



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



civil proceedings. Durham County Council. LA 100049055. 2011.

O/a

5.Thompsop Aug '11

County Council \&fstg

o
LEGEND:
I 40mph SPEED LIMIT
Reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey MMMM m Drawn wcv\ < N >U_u.>bO<MQ w< S b ot oF A d + _u_‘omooﬂ
on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. ame ate ame ate gn escription mendments L
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or ol 5 Thompsoh May 11 >®wm\ >;_ @N |:|__Z _Homo L.O _<=U_|_ mUQQQ _l_g_ﬁ

PATH:

STRATEGIC
TRAFFIC
MANAGEMENT
CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF

REGENERATION & ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT

COUNTY HALL, DURHAM. DH1 5UQ

Drawing

Traffic Regulation Order Drawing

Scales
N.T.S

Project/Drawing No.
TM/40038/11/25a




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on  1 November 2011
	3 Byway Applications in Weardale and Teesdale - Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Definitive Map Modification Order Applications - Joint Report of Corporate Director, Regeneration and Economic Development and Head of Legal and Democratic Services
	Appendices A B C

	4 Durham Gate - Speed restrictions and access restrictions - Report of Corporate Director, Regeneration and Economic Development
	overall layout
	no entry
	prohibition HC
	Speed TRO 811


